GENERAL AGREEMENT ON EESTRICTED

TARIFFS AND TRADE

C/M/237

28 November 1989

Limited Distribution

COUNCIL
7 November 1989

MINUTES OF MEETING

Held in the Centre William Rappard

on 7 November 1989

Chairman: Mr. John M. Weekes (Canada)

Subjects discussed:

89-1754

10.

Training activities
Dispute settlement

(a) Roster of non-governmental panelists

- Extension of roster
(b) Status of work in panels and
implementation of panel reports
- Report by the Director-General
Consultative Group of Eighteen

- Statement by the Chairman of the Group

Trade in Textiles
(a) Report of the Textiles Committee

(b) Report of the Textiles Surveillance

Body
United States - Taxes on petroleum and

certain imported substances - Follow-up

on the Panel report
- Communications from Canada
- Communications from the European
Communities
United States - Customs user fee
- Follow-up on the Panel report
Committee on Budget, Finance and
Administration
- Report of the Committee dated
26 October 1989
Appointment of presiding officers of
standing bodies
- Announcement by the Council Chairman
Accession of Costa Rica
- Report of the Working Party
Committee on Balance-of-Payments
Restrictions
(a) Consultation with Colombia
(b) Consultation with India
(c) Consultation with Korea

12

13

17

17

20



C/M/237
Page 2

Page

11. United States - Section 337 of the 23
Tariff Act of 1930
- Panel report
12, Korea - Restrictions on imports of beef - 26
Panel reports
(a) Complaint by Australia
(b) Complaint by New Zealand
(c) Complaint by the United States
13. Canada - Quantitative restrictions on 27
imports of ice cream and yoghurt
- Panel report
l14. United States - Countervailing duty on 31
pork from Canada
- Recourse to Article XXIII:2 by Canada
15. Consultation on trade with Romania 32
- Establishment of a working party ¢
16. Committee on Tariff Concessions 32
- Report of the Committee
17. Harmonized System - Requests for 33
extension of waivers under
Article XXV
(a) Mexico
(b) Sri Lanka
(c) Turkey
18. Turkey - Stamp duty 33
- Request for extension of waiver
under Article XXV
19. Zaire - Establishment of a new 39
Schedule LXVIII
- Request for waiver under Article XXV:5
20. Philippines - Rates of certain sales and 40
specific taxes
- Review under Paragraph 3 of the
Protocol of Accession
21. International Trade in Agriculture 42 &
- Communication from Australia
22. Increasing use of anti-dumping measures 43
23. Report of the Council 44

1. Training activities (L/6581)

The Chairman drew attention to the Director-General's report on the
trade policy courses organized by GATT (L/6581).

The Director-General, introducing the report, said that the training
activities during 1989 had focused on trying to improve the contents of the
program for the trade policy courses, in particular taking into account the
latest developments in the various negotiating groups of the Uruguay Round.
The demand for these courses continued to increase, as could be expected




C/M/237
Page 3

from the corresponding increase in GATT membership. While the Secretariat
did its best to satisfy requests from the different participating
countries, the number of posts available was limited. The Secretariat
tried to maintain the quality of the courses and to accommodate, as far as
possible, candidates from countries that had just joined or were in the
process of acceding to the General Agreement. He thanked the CONTRACTING
PARTIES for their support in this task.

He also thanked the Belgian and French Governments and the European
Communities’ authorities for inviting the French-speaking course for a
study tour in Belgium and France, as well as the Norwegian and Swedish
Governments for the study tour organized for the English-speaking course.
He thanked the Swiss authorities for their financial contribution which
permitted the realization of a special workshop on trade negotiation
techniques. He expressed his gratitude to the United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP) for its help in the processing of applications, and to
those members of permanent delegations and representatives of other
international organizations who had participated as lecturers in the
courses.

The representatives of India, Israel, Peru, Brazil, Yugoslavia, Sri
Lanka, Indonesia, Bangladesh, Nigeria, Mexico, Colombia on behalf of Chile
and Colombia, Egypt, Morocco and Jamaica stressed the immense value of the
trade policy courses to their respective countries’ officials in
delegations or in capitals. They expressed appreciation for the courses
and for the Secretariat’s efforts in this area.

The representatives of India, Israel, Brazil, Yugoslavia, Sri Lanka,
Indonesia, Colombia on behalf of Chile and Colombia, and Egypt expressed
their countries®' satisfaction with the large participation of developing
countries’ officials in the training activities which were designed to
foster an understanding of the complexity of GATT and trade policy matters.

The representatives of India, Israel, Yugoslavia, Sri Lanka, Indonesia
and Colombia on behalf of Chile and Colombia said that the ongoing Uruguay
Round negotiations made the training courses even more important, with the
growing need for expertise in complex matters, and that further impetus to
the courses would be needed at the completion of the negotiations.

The representatives of India, Israel, Peru, Brazil, Yugoslavia, Sri
Lanka, Nigeria, Mexico, Colombia on behalf of Chile and Colombia, Egypt,
Morocco and Jamaica expressed particular appreciation to the host countries
for having organized study tours and to the UNDP for its assistance in
processing applications.

The representative of Brazil said that for countries with insufficient
training facilities, the GATT trade policy courses provided an excellent
opportunity for familiarizing administration officials with the often very
complex and technical issues relating to GATT's work and its role in the
international trading system. These training activities had been extremely
useful in allowing many government officials a greater insight into
alternative perceptions of how GATT and the international trading system
functioned.



C/M/237
Page 4

The representative of Yugoslavia referred to the need to provide
adequate training to officials in different governmental bodies.

The representative of Indonesia suggested that in future,
consideration be given to allowing more than one participant per country.

The representative of Bangladesh thanked the Secretariat for its
assistance in organizing an inter-regional workshop with participation by

least-developed country representatives.

The Council took note of the statements and of the report (L/6581).

2. Dispute settlement

(a) Roster of non-governmental panelists
- Extension of roster (C/W/615)

The Chairman recalled that in November 1984, the CONTRACTING PARTIES
had decided to establish, on a trial basis and for a period of one year, a
roster of non-governmental panelists so as to facilitate the composition of
panels in those cases in which the parties to the disputes were unable to
agree on panelists (BISD 315/9). 1In November 1985, the Council had
approved a list of non-governmental panelists in document L/5906, and the
roster had been subsequently extended three times for one year at a time.
In November 1988, the CONTRACTING PARTIES had agreed to extend the roster
until the end of 1989. He understood that a number of delegations were of
the opinion that the Council should agree to extend the roster for an
additional year.

The representative of the United States suggested that given Mr.
Julius L. Katz's present status as a US Government official, his name be
removed from the roster (page 7 of C/W/615). The United States would,
however, propose another nominee in the near future.

The representative of the European Communities said that the Community
agreed to a further extension of the roster. The Community attached great o
importance to the fact that the individuals listed on the roster be seen as
independent and highly competent in trade matters. This was generally the
case; however, with respect to a few individuals, no information was
provided concerning their professional or non-professional activities. He
suggested that the Secretariat contact the delegations concerned to
complete the information or, alternatively, remove the names involved from
the list. Similarly, the names of individuals who had, since their
inclusion in the list, taken up government responsibilities should also be
removed. He welcomed the US statement in this respect.

The representative of Tanzania supported the Community’s position.

The representative of Japan welcomed the extension of the roster.
With regard to the Community’'s statement, he said that a curriculum vitae



C/M/237
Page 5

had been provided for individuals mentioned on page 5 of C/W/615 and
consequently their names should be marked with an asterisk.

The Council took note of the statements and agreed to extend the
roster of non-governmental panelists for an additional year as set out in
C/W/615 as amended.

(b) Status of Work in Panels and Implementation of Panel Reports
- Report by the Director-General (C/170)

The Chairman drew attention to the report by the Director-General on
the Status of Work in Panels and Implementation of Panel Reports (C/170).

The Director-General, introducing the report, said that in the past he
had issued his report on this subject twice yearly on the occasion of the
Special Council meetings. Given the 12 April 1989 Decision (L/6490,
paragraph "F") to no longer hold those meetings, he proposed henceforth to
provide this report at the Council meetings in June and November.

November 1989 marked the tenth anniversary of the 1979 Understanding™, the
first major codification of the GATT dispute settlement procedures. This
anniversary prompted him to make a few remarks on the use of these
procedures during the past decade.

Eighty-two complaints had been initiated under Article XXIII since
January 1980, bringing the total number of complaints under that provision
to 140. Thus, almost 60 per cent of all disputes had been brought in the
most recent decade of GATT’s forty-year history. It was noteworthy that
about 60 per cent of these disputes had arisen in the field of agriculture.
Developing contracting parties had been parties in about a quarter of the
cases (in 16 cases as complainants and in five as defendants) and had
intervened as interested third parties in 14 cases. Developing contracting
parties had resorted to Article XXIII mainly in reaction to measures
discriminating specifically against them. Of the 82 Article XXIII disputes
initiated since 1980, 37 had led to the submission of a panel report. The
other disputes had been settled, or not pursued, or were still being
examined by panels. 1In 32 of the 37 cases, the panels had found -- at
least partly -- in favour of the party bringing the complaint. In three
cases the panel had found against the complaining party, and in two others
the panel had noted that a settlement had been reached. The fact that in
over 90 per cent of the cases, panels had submitted a report favouring the
party that had brought the complaint could be taken as an indication that
contracting parties resorted to Article XXIII only after a careful
examination of their case. As he had remarked on previous occasions, most
delays in the dispute settlement procedures had occurred not during the
substantive work of the panels but prior to their establishment and after
the circulation of the reports to contracting parties. The Panels on
average had submitted their reports to the parties within about eight

lUnderstanding Regarding Notification, Consultation, Dispute
Settlement and Surveillance (BISD 26S/210)



C/M/237
Page 6

months of their constitution, well within the nine-month time limit imposed
by the 1979 Understanding. In some cases, however, it had taken a long
time to determine the panel’'s composition and terms of reference. As a
result, the average period had been close to three months, compared to the
thirty-day time limit provided for in the Understanding. He hoped that the
new procedures on dispute settlement adopted in April 1989 (L/6489)
relating to the constitution and terms of reference of panels would improve
this situation. Similarly, long delays had occurred in the process of the
adoption of panel reports and the implementation of their recommendations.
There was considerable room for improvement in this area if GATT dispute
settlement was truly to become, as stated in the April Decision, "a central
element in providing security and predictability to the multilateral
trading system".

The representative of the European Communities said that his
delegation found the report useful and suggested that in future reports it
might be interesting to include indications of the commercial importance of
the disputes resolved through the panel process. With regard to the 0
present report, mention was made of some panels established by the Council )
for which the matter had not, for whatever reasons, been pursued for quite
some time. At the June Council meeting, the Director-General had asked
what should be done with such cases in the absence of a procedure to deal
with them. The CONTRACTING PARTIES had recently adopted new procedures
(L/6489) which made a blockage of the panel process, up to the adoption of
the report, nearly impossible. The Community suggested that the panels
mentioned earlier be withdrawn from the list after a reasonable period of
time -- one year, for example. He suggested that the parties which had not
pursued the matters in question agree to remove these panels from the list,
or alternatively, that procedural rules along the lines he had suggested be
defined.

The representative -of Chile expressed appreciation for the report,
particularly in relation to the rollback commitment of the Uruguay Round.
He wondered if it would be possible to include in future reports, after
consultation, information as to how the reports had been implemented. It
would be useful to know whether the measures or provisions which had been
found to be GATT-inconsistent were still in force. Chile had raised this
issue in the Negotiating Group on Non-Tariff Measures and thought it would
be useful to raise it again.

it

The representative of Mexico said that the dispute settlement
mechanism was a key instrument for the good functioning of the GATT and,
ultimately, for the credibility of the system it represented. While his
delegation appreciated that important improvements had been made to the
mechanism, fundamental problems still existed which had to be overcome
before the end of the Uruguay Round. He urged that contracting parties
reiterate their firm policy to respect and comply with the principles of
GATT, either collectively or individually. In Mexico’s opinion, much
remained to be done in the negotiations on dispute settlement, the first
stage of which had focused on the process up to the end of panel
consideration. As shown by the Director-General’s report, the second stage
should now aim at reinforcing the part of the process which consisted of
the adoption of panel reports and, above all, the implementation of the



C/M/237
Page 7

latter’'s adopted recommendations. In this context, Mexico had in mind not
only the "Superfund" Panel (L/6175) but also its own faith, as a
contracting party, in the multilateral trading system, in which parties
solved their disputes without recourse to unilateral measures and all
parties respected the contractual compromises.

The representative of Peru associated his delegation with Mexico’s
statement.

The Council took note of the Director-General’'s report and of the

statements.

3. Consultative Group of Eighteen
- Statement by the Chairman of the Group

The Director-General, Chairman of the Group, recalled that at their
Session in 1988 the CONTRACTING PARTIES had agreed that in view of the
extreme pressure of work arising from the Uruguay Round, the Consultative
Group of Eighteen should in principle remain in suspense during 1989. It
had been accepted that if for any reason a meeting of the Group during this
year had appeared desirable he would have convened it, having first
requested the Council to take the necessary decision as to its composition.
No such need had become apparent and the Group had therefore not met during
1989. He informed the Council that he intended to make a similar proposal
at the forthcoming Session of the CONTRACTING PARTIES. The pressure of
work, both in Geneva and in capitals, would be even more intense in 1990
than it had been in 1989, and one should clearly avoid convening any
meeting of high-level trade officials except in cases of real necessity.
0f course, it should again be understood that if it appeared that a meeting
of the Group would be useful, he would convene it, and that the Council
would then be asked to decide on its composition. He emphasized that a
decision to allow the Group to remain in suspense during the Round would
have no implication for its future activities; it would remain a necessary
and important part of the GATT structure.

The Council took note of the statement.

4. Trade in Textiles
(a) Report of the Textiles Committee (COM.TEX/62 and Add.l)
(b) Report of the Textiles Surveillance Body (COM.TEX/SB/1490 and
Add.1)

The Director-General, Chairman of the Textiles Committee, introduced
the Committee’s report_on its third annual review of the operation of the
Multifibre Arrangement™ (MFA) as extended by the 1986 Protocol
(BISD 33S/7). Article 10:4 of the MFA required the Committee to conduct a
review of the operation of the Arrangement once a year and to report
thereon to the Council. The review in the third year -- carried out in

lArrangement Regarding International Trade in Textiles (BISD 21S/3).



C/M/237
Page 8

October 1989 -- was a major review of its operation in the preceding years.
In conducting this major review, the Committee had had before it: (a) a
report by the Secretariat on demand, production and trade in textiles and
clothing (COM.TEX/W/219) and (b) a report by the Textiles Surveillance Body
(TSB) which was also before the Council (COM.TEX/SB/1490 and Add.1l). The
Committee had also heard a report from the Chairman of the Sub-Committee on
Ad justment on the progress of the work in this area.

The report of the Textiles Surveillance Body covered the entire period
since the beginning of MFA IV (1 August 1986 - 30 June 1989). 1In its final
chapter, the report set out an analysis of the implementation of the MFA as
extended by the 1986 Protocol. The Committee had agreed at its meetings on
9 and 31 October 1989 that, unless a party to the MFA communicated to him,
as Director-General of the GATT, not later than 1 December 1989 its
objection to the amendment proposed in paragraph 3 of the Committee’s
Decision of 26 April 1989, as modified by its Decision of 20 July 1989, the
composition of the TSB for 1990, with effect from 1 January, would be from
members nominated by Brazil, Canada, China, the European Economic
Community, Indonesia, Japan, Hong Kong, Pakistan, Sweden and the United
States. The reports of the Textiles Committee on its meetings in April and
July were contained in documents COM.TEX/60 and 61, respectively.

He mentioned that the Textiles Committee was required, pursuant to
Article 10:5 of the MFA, to meet not later than one year before the expiry
of the Arrangement to consider whether it should be extended, modified or
discontinued. Accordingly, the Committee would have to meet before
31 July 1990, for this purpose.

The Council took note of the statement and of the report of the TSB
(COM.TEX/SB/1490 and Add.l) and adopted the report of the Textiles
Committee (COM.TEX/62 and Add.1l).

S United States - Taxes on petroleum and certain imported substances -
Follow-up on the Panel report (L/6175)
(a) Communications from Canada (L/6559, C/W/608)
(b) Communications from the European Communities™ (C/W/540 and Add.1l)

The Chairman recalled that at several meetings in 1988, the Council
had discussed the communications from the European Communities, and that at
its meetings in April, May, June, July and October 1989, it had discussed
the communications from Canada. In October, the Council had agreed to
revert to this matter at the present meeting.

The representative of Canada recalled that at the October Council
meeting, Canada had asked for authority from the Council to withdraw
concessions, outlined in C/W/608, from the United States. The United
States had said then that, as legislation to achieve compliance with the

lItem 6 on the Proposed Agenda (C/W/619). Items 5 and 6 were taken up
together.

)]

)






